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604 WATURAL WEALTH AND SBETTLEMENT.

any, and all foreign-born except the half-breeds.
hese men seldom had any trouble with the Indians,

At the same time the Coeur d’Aléne mission was equally prosperons. It
was situated on the Coeur d'Aléne River, ten miles above Ceur d'Aléne Lake,
Here about 200 screa were enclosed and under cultivation; mission buildings,
& church, & flour-mill run by horse-power, 20 cows, 8 yokes of oxen, IWE;QI.
horses, and mules, constituted a prosperons settlement. About both of thess
establishments the Indians were gathered in villages, enjoying with the mis-
sionaries the sbundance which was the reward of their The mission
of 5t Mary in 1846 consisted of 12 houses, neatly built of logs, a church, s
pmall mill, and other buildings for farm use; 7, bushels of wheat, between
4,000 and 5,000 bushels of , and tables of wvarious kinds were
produced on the farm, which was irﬁl&d’ two small streams running
throngh it. The stock of the establishment uinsilbﬂ& of 40 head of cattle,
some ﬁanen, and other animals. Then comes the old story. Tho condition
of the Indians was said to be greatly ameliorated. They no longer suffered
from famine, their children wera tanght, the women were shiolded from the
barbarons treatment of their husbands, who now assumed some of the labor
formerly forced npon their wives and daughters, and the lstter wers no longer
sold by their parents. Buot alas for human schemes of happiness or philan-
thru'plﬁrl When the Flatheads took up the cross and the plonghshare th
fell victims to the diseases of the white race. When they no longerm
war on their enemies, the Blackfoot nation, these implacable foes gave them
no They stole the horsea of the Flatheads until they nooe left
with which to buoh buffalo, and in pure malice shot their beef-cattle to pre-
vent their feeding themselves at bome, not refraining from shooting the
owners whenever an opportunity offered. By this system of persecution
they finally broke uwe establishment of 5t Mary in 1850, the priests find-
ing it impossilile to p the Indians settled in their vil under these cir-
cumstances, They resumed their migratory habits, and the fathers having
no protection in their isolation, the mission buildings weresold to John (wen,
who, with his brother Francis, converted them into s trading- and fort,
n.'nfdput- the establishment in & state of defence against the oot ma-
rauders.

In 158334 the only missions in operation were theee of the S8acred Heartat
Ceenr d'Aléne, of St Ignatine at Kalispel Lake, and of 8t Paul st Gol'-‘ilﬁ
though certain visiting stationa were kept up, where baptisms were perform
periodically. In 1854, after the Stevens exploring expedition had made the
country somewhat more habitable by treaty talks with the Blackfoot and
other tribes, Hoeken, who seems nearly as indefatigable s De Smet
selected & site for o new mission, *not far from Flathead Lake, and about fifty
miles from the old mission of St Mary." Here he erected during the summer
several frame buildings, & chapel, shops, and dwellings, and gathered abont
him & mmi: of Kootenais, Flatbows, Pend d'Oreilles, Flatheads, and Ealis
pels.  Raila for fencing were cut to the number of 18,000, a large field put
under cultivation, and the mission of 5t Ignatius in the Flathead country
cameo the successor of 8t Mary, In the new ‘reduction,’ the fathers were
assisted by the officers of the exploring ition, and especially by Licat
Muollan, who wintered in the Bitterroot Valley in 1854-5. In return, the
fathers assisted Gov. Stevens at the treaty-grounds, and endeavored to coo:
trol the Ceeur d'Alénes and Spokanes in the troubles that immediately fol-
lowed the treaties of 1855, of which I have given an account elsewhers. Sub-
sequently the mission in the Bitterroot Valley was revived, and the Flatheads
were tanght there until their removal to the reservation at Flathead Lake,
which resarve ineluded St tins mission, where & school waa first
in 1863 by Father Urbanus (zrassi. In 1338 the missionaries at the Fla
missions 300 more harrela of flonr than they could consume, which they
sold to the forts of the American Fur Co. on the Missouri, and the India
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Missouri in Montana, if we exceft some geological
rescarches by Evans, until the railroad survey under
Stevens was ordered; and to this expedition, more

.._.- "'I

LEwis AND CLARER'S Map, 1506,

than to any other cause, may the gold discoveries in
Idaho and Montana, and the ultimate rapid settle-
ment of the country, be credited.™ Stevens left at

™ Stevens' party, charged with the scientific object of the expedition, con
sisted of Capt. J. W. T. Uardiner, lst drag.; Lieut A. J. Donclson, corps of
engineers, with ten sappers and minen:rﬁaut Beckman du DBarry, 3d art;
Licut Cuvier Grover, 4th art.; Lient John Mullan, 24 art.; Isaac I
disbursing azent; J. M. Stanley, artist; George Euuklnﬁ, surgeon and nat
uralist; F. W, Lander and A, VW, Tinkham, sssist eng.; Joln Lambert topog-

rapher; George V. Stevens, William M. Grabam, and A, DRemenyi, in charge
of astronomical and magnetic obeervations; Joseph F. Moffutt, meteorologist;
Johm Evavs, geclogist; Thomas Adams, Max Strobel, Elwood Evans, F. H
Burr, amd A. Jekelialuzy, aids; and T. 8. Everett, quartermaster and com-
missary’s clerk. Pac. Il. K. Kepe, xii. 33.




DOTY, GROVER, AND MULLAN, 807

Fort Benton, and west of there along the line of ex-
ploration in Montana in the winter of 1853—4, one of
his assistants, James Doty, to study under Alexander
Culbertson the character and feelings of the Indian
tribes of the mountains, preparatory to a council of
treaty with the Blackfoot nation; Lieutenant Grover,
to observe the different passes, with regard to snow,
during the winter; and Lieutenant Mullan, to explore
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for routes in every direction. These officers and Mr
Doty secmed to have failed in nothing. Mullan trav-
elled nearly a thousand miles, crossing the divide of the
Rocky Mountains six times from October to January,
passing the remainder of the winter at Cantonment
Stevens in the Bitterroot Vallev, Grover on the 24 of
January left Fort Benton, crossing the Rocky Moun-
tains by Cadotte’s pass on the 12th, and finding the
cold severe, the temperature by day being 21° below
zero. On the 16th, being on very elevated ground, at
sunrise the mercury stood at 38° below zero. Iu the
Hellgate and Bitterroot valleys it was still from
10° to 20° below zero, which was eold weather
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808 NATURAL WEALTH AND SETTLEMENT.

even for the mountains. On the 30th he left Fort
Owen for Walla Walla, having warmer weather, but
finding more snow from Thompson prairie on Clarke
fork to Lake Pend d’'Oreille than in the Rocky
Mountains, and arriving at Walla Walla on the 2d
of March.
Meantime Stevens had gone to Washington cit

to advocate the building of the Northern Pacific raif
road and the construction of a preliminary wagon-road

from Fort Benton to Fort Walla Walla. On receiv-
ing the reports of Grover and Mullan the following
spring, he directed Mullan and Doty to continue their
explorations, and their efforts to promote peace among
the natives, especially between the Blackfoot and
Flathead tribes. Of the temporary failure of the
scheme of a wagon-road, through the combination of
the southern tribes for war in 1855, the narrative has
been given. After the subjugation of the natives,
Mullan was permitted to take charge of this highway,
which played its part in the early history of the set-
tlement of Montana, and its trade and travel. The
road was first advocated as a military necessity to
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PIONEER NAMES, 625

Fort Benton were thirty or forty persons of different
nationalities, such as attach themselves to fur com-
nies.”

At the Blackfoot agency, established in 1858 on
Sun River, by Alfred J. Vaughn, agent for that tribe,
were a few persons.”® On the west side of the Rocky
Mountains, in Missoula county, Washington, were
over two hundred persons, inclusive of the mining,
trading, missionary, and other classes. Of these Deer
Lodge Valley had about seventy." Already a town

of 500 or 800 acres of land. Another settler in the Gallatin Valley this

waa John E. Reese, born in Wales, Jan. 12, 1818, who immigrated to New
York in 18568, and settled on & farm in Pa, where he remai but 2§ years,
when he went to Salt Lake. In 1562 he found himself in Bannack; but choos-
ing farming instesd of mining, he settled 15 miles north of the present town
of Boreman, having no neighbor nearer than 7 miles He married Mary
Davis in 1840, who was the first and for some time the only white woman in
his mection. He owns 240 acres well cultivated, and some and cattle.

Eobert . Menefee, born in Mo., in 1833, went to Kansas at the age of 22
zun. anid was in the political struggle thers from 1855 to 1858, when

e went to Utah, driviog an ox-team. While in S8alt Lake he was clerk for
Gilbert Garrison. In Oct. 1882 he went to the mines aé Bannack. When
Virginia City aroee he was postmaster from Aug. 1864 to Feb. 1885. He
then remained for a few months in Deer Lodge Valley, returning in the au-
tomn. He took some land in Gallatin Valley in 1867, together with John 8.
Mendenhall, whom he bought out in 1870. Therealso resided on & farm near
Bozeman, Riley Cook; & young man whose parents emigrated from the east to
Boisé Valley in 1862, He was {um the following year, being one of the first, if
oot the first native of Idaho of white parentage. He lived there on a farm un-
til 1881. James Redford was anative of Ireland, who immigrated to America
in 1851, at the age of 21 years, and located himself in Pa, whera he worked at
eominon labor until 1855, when he went to Kansas, Nebraska, and Coalorado
in succession. He drove freight teams across the plains two scasons, then en-
ﬂg&d in mining in Colorado. In 1862 he came to Bannack with a mule-taam,

ting himeelf at Bivens gulch apnd mining for 11 or 12 years. In 15064
he married Julis Edwards. They had 10 chilfren, and owned 240 acres in the
head of Jefforson Valley, where they engaged in raising horses and cattle,

* Andrew Dawson was agent in charge; George Stull and M. Carroll, chief
clerks; Hunick, sub-r.hfk:ﬁepry Bostwick and Francis Veicle, interpreters;
Bentr:in De Hoche, Joseph Spearson, Charles Choquette, Peter (’Jln':r'qu11-!’.1‘,1:1
Michael Champagne, and Henry Hobert, interpreters and traders; Vineen
Mercure and Joseph Laurion, carpenters; Jobn Nubert, tailor; Henry Martin,
blacksmith; (Jeorge Weipert, tinner; Paul Longleine, overseer of workmen;
Antoine Burdean, Clement Cournoya, Charles Cournoya, Choarles Conand,
Edward Cunand, Milton Foy, Juﬂ:ph Hule, William Keiser, John Largent,
Joseph Lueier, William Trueadale, [saish Tremblez, employés; Daniel .
fel, n free man; Philip Barnes and Hewry Mills, negro employds; Jamea
Vanlithurg, negro cook. Con. flisf. Soc. Montana, 347-5.

12 The agent at this time was Henry W. Beid. The farmer was J. A. Vail,
whose wife and sister-in-law, Misa O'Hrien, were the only white women resi-
dent in Montana previous to 1862, Another person on Sun River was Jamea
M. Arnoux,

U Gold Creek had Thomas Adams, Reese Anderson, A. Cook, 8
Fernier, Joseph Howard, Mrs Hewins, Peter Kishner and partner, Li

Hier, Wanm.—40




ELECTION AND EXTREA SESSION. 677

But that did not prevent the legislature from pass-
ing a bill at the session of 1871-2 chaniing the time
of the election of his successor to 1872, thereby short-
ening his term to one year. Congress, as it happened,
passed a bill changing the time of election of repre-
sentatives and delegates to the 43d congress to the
first Monday after the first Tuesday in November
1872, so that the Montana act was partly shorn of its
force. In opposition to his better judgment, those
who desired his reélection persuaded him to run a
second time in 1872, when he was defeated by the
well-organized democratic party, and Martin Magin-
nis® elected by a majority of about three hundred.

The extra pay of the legislature had been abol-
ished and forbidden by congress, which paid all the
legislative expenses. An obstacle was thus removed,
and in March 1873 Governor Potts issued a proc-
lamation calling an extra session for the 14th of
April, the nominal excuse for which was the im-
perfections in the laws passed at the late regular
session, but the real reason for which was that there
existed in Montana a numerous faction, or ring, who
were determined in their efforts to inveigle the tax-
payers of Montana, already overburdened with debt,
into pledging the faith of the territory to build a rail-
restored. He secured § new Emt-mum and 20 post-offices, He drew np and
bad passed the pational-park bill, setting apart 50 miles square to the use of the
nation forever. N. G. glord was made superintendent, and put to laying
out roads. He secured 3 national banks, 1 at Helena, capital §100,000; 1 at
Deer Lodge, copital $50,000; and 1 at Bozeman, capital §50,000. He secured
an nssay office for Helena with an l.pprugrintion of §30,000; and mnother

P tion of §3,000 to pay for the printing of the laws of the Tth session
:rtha Montana legislature; half that amount to pay a deficiency in settling
with the printer of the lawa of the 6th session; and an additional appropri-
stion for the survey of the public lands. He procured the amendment giving
the governor power to appoint in recess, He assisted in amending the quarta
law of the territory, giving those whoe performed a certnin amount of labor
upon their claims o patent to the same. Ho procured an amendment to the
organic act empowering the legislature to incorporate railroads. He secured
the privilege of having all territorial offices filled by persons domiciled in the
termitory, excepting U. 8. judges, Indian nts, and superintendents. Ha
had the courage to refuse to do something which he was requested to perforin,
but never loat a single ﬁxumm Montans throngh nr:&ect. or incapacity.

ett was formerly of Nev

Maginnis was & worthy succeasor to Claggett, and secured many bane-
fits to the territory. He was in congress continuously for ten years.
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road which was to enrich them if it ruined the com-
monwealth. There had been much discussion of the
question of the legality of a tax levied for such a pur-
pose, some of the journals taking strong ground
against it,™ on the side of the people.

The governor in his message gave a statement of
finances, showing an increase of debt in sixteen
months of over $29,000, which he did not hesitate to
say was due to the ‘‘ extravagant expenditures of the
last legislative assembly, which reached nearly the
sum of $45,000;” or to tell them that the finances
of the territory had been so managed by the law-
making power as to give little hope for its future.

" The Deer Lodge New Northwest, republican, edited and owned by James
H. Mills, was unremitting in defence of the people's interests. The New
Northwest was established July 9, 1868, at Deer Lodge. It wus an S8-column
journal, and ably conducted, without being radical. The journalism of Moa-
tana was for the moat part conduocted with dignity, sbility, and considering
their remoteness from the great world, with success. The Monianian, first
published at Virginia City by JMEII Wright and L. M. Black, Julg 12, 1870,
was & democratic journal. Wright left in A t 1871, when . F. Co
conducted it for two years. Cope sold it to a Joint-stock company, H. ET
Blake being editor, who resigned on being appointed district judge, and waas
mucceeded by H. T. Brown. It wasat last sold to the Madisonsan in 15876
The Bozeman Jpand-Courier, democratic, waa founded Dec. 135, 1871, by
%lac h;\?right md&l:nh[. Il?hp::ll mtnk’lflihw Allgnmdmﬁlt;hnditi:r. Il:] 1574

, desiring to change the polic B pApeT, right's leass having
expired, made o new lease to J. "; Bogert without giving Wright notice.
This canse: the seizure and suspension of the Cowrier, from September 2ith
to November 13th, when Wright, having secured other ma

blication. It was published semi-weekly in 1870, but onl

ime. In Febroary 1877, the paper passed into the hands of W. W. Alder-
son, J. V. Bogert, ublican, associats aditor. The Courier wos the pioneer
journal of eastern Montana, to whosa de t it was dev . The
elena News Leiler was started in Feb. 1869, The Missoula Pioneer, demo-
cratic, was established in 1871 by the Pioneer Publishing Company, at
Missonla City, in Missoula county, and was devoted to the development of
western Montans, Leonidas Boyle and W, J, McCormick, editors, M.
Woody and T. M. Chisholm purchased the paper in 1873, and changed its
name to Missoulian, Chisholm sold his intereat the same year to W. K. Turk.
The Madisonian, published at Virginis City in Sept. 1573, was & political
democratio journal, edited by Thomas Deyarman, sheriff of Madison county.

When the Montanian discontinued, it purchased its material and good.wi
The Rocly Mouniain Husbandman, devoted to the ngricn]tnml development
of the eountry, was started in Nov. 1875, by R. N. Sutherlin, at Diamond
City, in Meagher county. The T'ri- Weeldy Capital Times, established in Sept
1868 by Joseph Magree, 8. P. Basset, and I Morriscn, at Virginia City,
was a democratic journal, G-colomn sheet. On June 1, 1870, it was trans-
ferred to the charge of William T. Lovell and Joseph Wright, who subse-
quently published the Montanian, The Bozeman Thiines, ano democratio
m: , waa eatablished in 1875 by Heary C. igh and F. Wilkinson,
IE;IE. 8. Wilkinson, 1t was a 7-column paper, ted to democracy.




FINANCE AND ERATLROAD, &79

The public debt was in excess of half a million of
dollars, which the territory, being possessed of great
resources, might pay, but which should not be in-
creased. This advice came after congress had ap-
plied the remedy, by prohibiting extra compensation
from the territorial treasury, and advancing the pay
of the legislators to a compromise between penury
and extravagance. The governor recommended legis-
lation which should prevent the sheriff of Madison
county char%ng $222 for taking a convict to the peni-
tentiary at Deer Lodge, a distance of 120 miles, and
similar unnecessary wastefulness of the public money,”
without taking into account that to hold offices and
spend the people’s money freely were prerogatives of
partydominant in Montana at that time, with which
the could never be persuaded to part. voluntarily.
n the proposition to vote county bonds to aid in
constructing a railway from the d‘;ﬂtra.l Pacific to

Helena, the governor had an opinion decidedly un-
favorable to the project, which he pronounced suicidal.
As to the legality of lmpasmia tax for such a pur-

pose, he held that taxes must be imposed for a public
and not for a private purpose; and that when taxation
was prostituted to objects not connected with the
public interests, it became plunder. Some of the gov-
ernor’s suggestions with regard to retrenchment were
carried out; but the railroad bill, the main object for
which an extra session had been brought about, was
passed and approved by the governor, namely, «A bill
for an act enabling and authorizing any county or
counties within the territory of Montana to aid in
the construction of a railroa.c{, and to subsecribe to the
capital stock of the same,”®

7,555 0nt of 143 besasury, i aciitin o the feemaf the sheciTpabd by IHigante
in civil canses. The sheriff of Gallatin county received §2,671 in the same
whli was in adiition bo theie Peoper fose - The sggrogate b of thous coums
Eﬂl was §97,000. The maum for m-&alhm in 14872 was

$32,730.62. M of Gov. Potta, in New Northwest, April 19, 1873. .
#The couneil of the extrasrdinary session was composed of G, W. Stapls-
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By this act it became lawful for the county com-
missioners of any county to submit to any inco
rated company a proposition to subscribe to the build-
ing of a railroad from the Union Pacific, the Central
Pacific, or the Utah Northern into or through the ter-
ritory of Montana, not exceeding twenty per cent of
the taxable property of the county; but upon condi-
tion that Madison, Jefferson, and Gallatin counties
should subscribe fifteen per cent, two per cent to be
paid as soon as the road reached those counties, and
thirteen per cent when it should be completed. A
similar proposition should be presented to the other
counties, with the difference that the amount to be
subscribed was ten per cent in Meagher and twenty
per cent in Lewis and Clarke counties, with other
provisions, the chief of which was that an election
was to be held, at which the people should vote upon
the question of subsidy, yes or no.®

ton, president, E. T. Yager, John Owen, W. B. Dance, W. E. Bams, D, P,
Newcomer, Robert Lawrence, Robert Fisher, Seth Bullock, J. C. Stuart, 8,
J. Beck, and Owen Garrigan, with one vacancy; clerks, A. M. 8. Carpenter,
H. W. Hill, A. J. Davidson, W. G. Barkley; sergeant-at-arms, James Cad-
E:g; door-keeper, H. J. Johnson. House of representatives, John H.
gers, er, B. D, Aiken, James M. Alger, Joseph A. Brown, Alexander
Carmichael, W. A. Chessman, George 8. man, Otho Cuortis, Isasc Dean,
A, Dusold, Beojamin Ezekicl, R. E. Emerson, Joseph W, Hartwell, Curtis
L. Harri.ngton, F. George Heldt, James Kennedy, J. C. Kerley, Samuel
Mallory, Christian He& GomEo W. McCanley, C. C. O'Keefe, Isanc 8.
Stafford, Wilbur F, Sanders, C. W. Sutton, y M. Tate; clerks, TV,
W. Chapman, E. H. Hurley, L. Hawkins; sergeant-at-arms, W. T. Shirley;
g.olil;v_g‘wp:r, L. B. Bell. Mont, Jour, House, extra session, April 14 to May
® Missoulian, May 16, 1873, A bill introduced by W. F. Sanders called
for & subscription by counties to the amount of §2,300,000, they giving bonds
Fﬁ able in 30 years, with 7 per cent interest, to be paid semi-annually, which
iled to pass. The one which was & substitute. When Claggett was
in con, he was importuned to secure a right of way acrosa the public
lands for any railroad companies, and to securs to pay for the extraor-
dinary session. He the matter ldmiﬂr. ow not aak for the
money until a bill he had introduced granting night of way, and uiring &
two-thirds vote of the tax-payers to mthmfr.};gl ﬁnt or :j:rmn.icip:?qm I;ung 2
should hnvn‘i:umd. Should congress pass the bill, Montana would be safe,
and he would do his best to get an appropriation for the extra session. This

d_iﬁlnma.tic conrse was the origin of the substitute bill. But the U. 5. senata
did not favor siding railroads in the territories, and the right-of-way bill was
not passed. gett did, however, secure an amendment to the organio act
empowering the legislature to incorporate railroads, which could do no harm
under tho restriction of the right-of-way bill. The bill finally passed, in
March 1875, and his suecessor secured §20,000 appropristion to pay the ex-
penses of the oxtra session.
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The failure to secure a grant from congress of a
right of way for railroads across the public lands, and
the disinclination of the people to be any more heavily
taxed than they were, kept the question from being

ut to a vote before the eighth session of the legis-

ture, oceurring in January and February 1874.%
From the message of Governor Potts, it is evident
the Montana law-makers had not much amended their
habits of extravagance” The reforms recommended
by the exeuutivea%nd not yet reached county commis-
sioners, whose per diem was ten dollars; nor sheriffs,
who received three dollars a day for subsisting pris-
oners in jail; nor prosecuting attorneys, who received
three thousand dollars perannum. Under the existing
law the cost of collecting taxes was four times greater
than in the states east of the Missouri. Only two
counties had paid any of their indebtedness the last
year, Deer Lodge and Beaverhead. All the other
counties had increased their debt, Lewis and Clarke
owing $148,550.39; and in Meagher county the com-
missioners had refused to levy a school tax of three
mills, their economy beginning by closing the public

*The new members of the council were R. E. Arick, O. B. Barber, A. H.
Beattie, Charles Cooper, J. J. Davis, and L. R Maillet. The lower house
was the saine as in 16873, except a new member, J. M, Arooux, Clerks of the
eonncil, A. M. 8, tar, Hobert W. Hill, T. E. Collins, W. B. Morrison;
sergeant-at-arms, J. E. Allen; door-keeper, J. M. Castner. Clerks of the
house, A. H. Barrett, W. W. Chapman, E. P. Owens, 8. Hughes; sergeant-
;t-ti:.mu, genrga Broffy; door-keeper, George Linder. Mont. Council Jour.,

peas. , 3.

¥ In his message to the Bth legislature, the governor made the plain state-
ment that in his first measage he bad recommended the repeal of the law
granting extra compensation to U, 8, officers and legislators out of the terri-
torial treasury, but that his advice had been disregarded, except as to the
U. 8. judges, and that the sum of $32,614.80 was drawn from the treasury of
Montans nnd mdnmthntlem‘.nhtum: and at the close of that seseion, 1871-2,
£201,000 had paid bithe territory, under the law granting extra com-
pensation, since the assembling of the first legislature. This fact, and the
rapid increase of the debt by the law-making power, had cansed him to ask
the interposition of congress to annul the extra-compensation laws; and he
had accompanied his request with an abetract of the financial condition of
Montana, which produced the desired result in the passage of a law of congreas

hibiting the e or enforcement of any law Ly a territorial legislatare
Emwhinh officers or legislatora should be paid n{n}y compensation other than

t provided by the laws of the United States. [F. S. Statutes at Large, vol.

xvii. 418, Under this law Montana had expended $41,350.21 leas in 1873 than
in 1872, and warrants had advanced 10 centa on a dollar in consequence,
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schools.® These revelations did not prepare the
ple to regard favorably any scheme which ahuu]cr?::
crease their burdens, and for the time railroad legis-
lation was interrupted.

Meantime a lively interest was felt in the subject
of transportation, and much discussion was being had
in the public prints as to which route should have
the preference. The Northern Pacific, dear to the
penp?e of Montana from a sentiment dating back to
the days when the United States senate debated a
route to China via the mouth of “the Oregon River,”
and now plainly a necessity of this commonwealth to
open up a vast extent of rich mineral and agricultural
lands, was the first choice of the whole of eastern
Montana; while the counties along the line of the pro-
jected extension of the Utah Northern to Helena
would have liked, could they have afforded it, to see
that f;‘a&d cnnstructed} g o ;

After the passage of the right-of-way act of congress
in March 1875, a railroad gmnventign was heﬁi at
Helena April 21st, at which, among other declarations,
it was resolved that a committee of one from each
county should be appointed to solicit propositions
from the Northern Pacific, Utah Northern, Portland,
Dalles, and Salt Lake, Union Pacific, and Central
Pacific railroad companies, and to gather information
bearing upon the su ject of railroads. The only com-
Eany which availed itself of the invitation extended

y the convention to send commissioners to the legis-
lature, which convened January 1876, was the North-
ern Pacificc. This company appointed its vice-presi-
dent, George Stark, and its chief engineer, W. Milnor
Roberts, a committee to confer with the legislature
relative to a plan by which their road could be
extended from the Missouri, at Bismarck, to the
Yellowstone River, and up the Yellowstone Valley
two hundred or more miles, during 1876-7.

The result of this conference was that the North-

® Governor's message, in Hozeman Avani-Courier, Jan. 9, 1874,
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ern Pacific accepted the loan of the credit of the ter-
ritory in the sum of three million dollars, at eight per
cent interest, secured by a lien upon the traffic of the
road to and from Montana. An argument in favor of
such a loan was that Montana expended annually in
freights by the way of the Union Pacific, and bﬁ
wagons from Corinne, a million of money, to whie
was added another half million on freights by the way
of the Missouri River, and wagons from Benton.
The reduction on the cost of freights would soon
amount to three millions, if the people could be
brought to deprive themselves temporarily of that
amount. A similar proposition concerning the Utah
Northern was also to be entertained if that company
accepted, which it did not, saying that Montana was
not able to help build two railroads, and they would
wait the action of the people on the Northern Pacific
proposition. The election for or against the subsidy
was held in April 1876, and there proved to be a
majority of only 248 against it.
or such an outcome the legislature® was prepared,
and passed an act, vetoed by the governor and
over his head, convening the next legislative body in
January 1877. The ostensible reason for changing
the time of meeting was to bring it nearer the time
of election, as if to amend the election law were
not a cheaper method of arranging this matter. Dele-
ate Maginnis was notified to secure an appropriation
rom congress, and did so.®
™ Members of the council at the Bth session were Asa Brown, president,
J. Abascal, J. Allenbaugh, W. E. Bass, Ed. Cardwell, Philip Constans, W.
E. Cullen, William Graham, W, O. P, Haya, James Hornbuckle, I I. Lawis,
BE. H. Tatem, Thomas Vvatson; clerks, R. Comley, G. E. Watson,
Patrick Talent, H. C. Wilkinson; t-at arma, Otis Strickland; door-
keeper, P. H. Maloney. Members of the lower house were 8. W. Iu:‘{
horne, speaker, 3. W. Beal, E. . Brooke, J. C. Burkett, Alfred Cave,
Carmichael, W. A. Chessman, T. H. Clewell, Otho Curtis, R. 8. Ford, D.
Kenneally, C. Mead, A, B. Moore, J. C. Moore, W. J. McCormick, J. H.
McKnight, L. B. Olds, Brigham Reed, Louis Rotwitt, W, F. S8anders, Gran-
ville Stuart, John M. Sweeney, William E. Tierney, P. Woodlock, Samuel
Word, F. L. Worden; clerks, A. H. Barrett, J. N. Heldt, N. H. Connelly,
J. E. C. Kanouse; sergeant-at.arms, H. K. Emerson; door-keeper, J. g

Thom . Mont, Jour, Council, Pth scasion,
» couneil of the 10th seasion was composed of W. E. Basa, president,
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The Northern Pacific having been disposed of, the

Utah Northern now came forward with a proposition
to the legislature in session in 1877, and offered to
build 300 miles of narrow-gauge railroad within three
years, 100 hundred miles a year, starting at Franklin,
in Idaho, to a point as far north as the Bighole River,
and to be called the Utah Northern Extension, for a
subsidy of $5,000 per mile in bonds of the territory,
to be placed in escrow in New York, to be delivered
at stipulated times, and to draw interest at eight per
cent per annum from time of delivery, that is, at the
completion of every twenty miles.

The proposition to build to the Bighorn was made
to carry the road near or to the national park. But
it would in that case pass through a rough and ele-
vated region, not likely to be soon settled if ever, and
chiefly outside of Montana, and the legislature in
framing a bill changed the route to Fort Hall, Idaho,
thence to Pipeston, Jefferson county, Montana, to
terminate at or to come to Helena. But no survey
of any route had been made, and the bill also was
very {UGS'E]}Y drawn, leaving it to the railroad company
to stop at any point by forfeiting fifteen per cent of
the proposed subsidy. If the company accepted the
terms proposed in the bill as passed by the legislature,
it was to signify its acceptance on or before the 25th
of March, and their acceptance or non-acceptance was
to be announced by a proclamation from the executive
office. Whether it was the change in the route, or

John B. Allenbaugh, Asa A. Brown, Philip Copstans, W. E. Cullen, Robert
Ford, W. 0. P, Hays, 1. [. Lewis, P. W. McAdow, Arimstead H. Mitchell,
Benjamin H. Tatem, Edwin B. Waterbury, Thomaa Watson; clerks, Harry
K. Comly, Horace C. Lewis, David Marks, H C. Wilkinson; se t-
at-arme, Otis Strickland; deor-keeper, Thomas Daly. Members of the house
were Alexander E. Mayhew, speaker, Edwin M. Batchelder, Henry B. Brain-
ard, Walter F. Chadwick, Joseph Davis, James A. Dixon, Hugh F. Galen,
Richard 0. Hickman, Horatio E Howell, Joseph A. Hyde, Frank C. Ives,

Nicholas Kessler, Washington J. McCormick, Jamea McElroy, Henry H.
Mood, Benjamin T. Porter, Daniel P. Robbius, John C. Hobinson, Luui:ﬁat.-
witt, Junius G. Boanders, Wilbur F. Sanders, George Stell, William A.
Thompson, Robert P. Vivian, Aaron C. Witter, Samuel Word; clerks, An-
thony H. Barrett, Heory A. Lambert, Albert J. McEiernan, Clarence 0.
Ewing; t-at-arms, Stephen Bynuin; door-keeper, Daniel Farry. Mont.
dour, Council, 10th session,
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whether the tone of the most influential newspapers
in Montana foreshadowed to the company the faiﬁre
of the measure at the election whicgﬂ would follow
their acceptance, they made no sign on or before the
25th of lfarch.and the proclamation of the governor
immediately after announced the conclusion of all this
scheming and legislation, which obviated the necessity
of a subsidy election on the 10th of April.

The same year, however, the Utah Northern ex-
tended its line northward, changing its route to Snake
River, through Marsh Valley and Port Neuf Caiion.
In April 1879 the president of that company, Sidney
Dillon, made a proposition to the governor of Mon-
tana to extend the road to the Montana line within
the current year, and 130 miles into Montana within
the year 1880, provided only that the legislature
would, by act, exempt the road from taxation for a
period 01:" fifteen years. To be able toaccept or reject
this proposition, the governor issued a proclamation
calling an extraordinary session, to convene on the 1st
of July, and in his message strongly advocated the
acceptance of the proposition,*® the message being re-

" Mont. Jour. Council and House, 1870, 12-14. The reasons given by the
governor for calling an extra session were, as stated in his proclamation, that
the eleventh legislature had adjourned without making an apportionment
of the tan“l:':? or lagﬁulutiva purposes, as required by a recent act of congress, .
and as the safety of the inhabitanta mquirﬁ such legislation as would enable
them by armed organizations to t themselves from Indian depredations,
and as the late I-uﬁlhtiu assembly had failed to enact a law pmij.inmé for the
funding of the debt of the territory at a lower rate of interest than that bein
paid, and as serious errors appeared in some of the laws passed at the cleven
seasion, and many legitimate subjects of legislation failed of maturity at that
sesaion, therefore he reassembled them to do what should have been done at the
regular seasion. Nothingwas said about railroads, but the anti-railread journals
treated the governor's real desipn as if it had been proclaimed, and & resolotion
was introduced in the house censuring, or at least eriticising, the executive for
assembling them for reapportionment before a census had been taken, at a
season of the year inconvenient for moat of them, and in viclation of a law of
congress that no territorial legislature should be convened without an appro-

iation first having been mvﬂatn defray the expenses. The resolution waa
referred to the judiciary committee, of which W. F. Sanders was chairman,
His report is a fine piece of diplomatic writing—he being the head and front
of rai agitation —declaring that the legislative assembly was not a
political convention, nor was it elected to emticise the management of the
executive d ment of the government. It might memorialize, but it should
not seold.  1f necessary, it might impeach officers created by it; but the rea-
olution did not pmnee?to that length. It was inappropriate to be conaidered
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ferred to a committee composed of J. A. Hyde, W.
C. Gillette, and W. O. P. Hays, the two former, con-
stituting a majority, reported in favor of the governor’s
suggestions, and the latter against them, upon the
ground that the laws of the United States did not
permit them to grant a special privilege to one com-
pany, which in this case they could not afford to ex-
tend to other roads, notably to the Northern Pacific,
with its 30,400 square miles of land within the terri-
tory, besides its movable property when completed.
Two bills were intmduce(f one to comply with the
proposition of the Utah Northern, and another to
empower the county of Lewis and Clarke to subscribe
$300,000 in bonds to that road. In the former case,
the law was absolute without being referred to the
E}ﬂ le; in the latter, it was subject to an election.

oth met with much adverse argument, and both were
finally defeated. The legislature adjourned on the
23d, baving passed nineteen acts, among which were
several tending toward a more economical use of the
peoﬂle’s money than had heretofore been the practice
of the legislators of Montana.™

or by the assembly, and it was recommended that it shonld not pass.
This report silenced the murmuor against the mdm for deing for once, of
his own volition, or at the instance of the rai party, what they had al-
_ways been ready to do when their pay was §12 a day for enacting laws which
filled the pockets of their favorites. Thers being no money appropriated,
mor any in the treasury, made all the difference, not congresa besides
already been driven toreduce their pay tofour dollars per diem, and forbidden
them to take any pay from the terntory,
¥'The conneil of the 11th and extraordinary sessions of 1870 consisted of
Armsteand H. Mite ]ii.‘,rgru.idmt. Martin Barrett, William G. Conrad, War-
ren C. Gillette, Ric 0. Hickman, Anton M. Holter, W. 0. P. Ha;
Joseph A, Hyde, Frank C. Ives, Richard T. Eennon, William Parberry, Junius
G. Banders, Oscar A, Sedman; clerks, Harry R. Comly, Hayden E. Riddle;
sergeant-at-arms and door-keeper, Dennis U. Bheehy; chaplain, Rev. John
Armatrong. The lower house was composed of SBamuel Word, speaker, Sam-
uel Barbour, Elizur Beach, William T, Boardman, Joseph J. Boyer, Edward
G. Brooke, S8amuel B. Cornick, Caldwell Edwards, James Fergus, John F.
Forbis, Alfred B. Hamilton, C. L. Harrington, Joseph E. Marion, Washing-
ton J. McCormick, James McElroy, Hen . Mood, John Ncgu, Willi:.mnﬁ.
Perkina, John C. Hobinson, Wilbur F. Sanders, Geo tell, Granville
Stuart, John M, SMEE. James T. Thorpe, Enoch Wilsom: clerks, James
E. Eanouse, Jamea W. Kemper; sergeant-at-arms and door- r, Daniel
Searles; chaplain, Mahlon N. Gilbert. The bill rea ning the territory
for lzfuhhw purposes was vetoed by the governor use it violated the
law of congress requiring the apportionment to be made according to popula-
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The failure of the railroad bills did not have
the effect to prevent railroad-building. The Union
Pacific company could not longer defer competing
with the Northern Pacific, which was now approach-
ing the Montana territory with rapid strides. It
therefore constructed ten miles of the Utah Northern
within the limits of Montana before cold weather
interrupted grading. In the following year it con-
stru 110 miles, and in 1881 reached Helena.
With the opening of railroad communication a new
era of prosperity, which had been slowly dawning since
about 1876, greatly assisted the territory in recover-
ing from its embarrased financial condition. This,
together with the restrictions placed upon reckless
expenditure by congress, and the faithful admonitions
of Potts, who still held the executive office to the
satisfaction of both political parties, finally accom-
plished the redemption of the territory. hen the
governor found that at the meeting of the twelfth
legislature the several counties still owed an aggregate
debt of $619,899.86, he pointed out over again that
this exhibit did not sustain their boasted ability for
local self-government,® and that it must deter immi-
gration, and retard the admission of Montana as a
state, recommending certain improvements in the
laws regulating county affairs. ;

On the contrary, the improvement in territorial
finances was encouraging, there being a net indebted-
ness rema.ining of only a little more than £20,000.
Few reforms in county administrations were accom-
plished at this session,™ and at the meeting of the
tion, and was made 'to answer the demands of locality alone.” The house
refused to reconsider the bill, and it was lost.

¥ This reproach of the governor was simed at & continual hl:rpinf by cer-
tain papers on the tyranny of congreas, and the greater prosperity of o terri-
hur_;lwhich could be allowed to choose its officers, and manage its own affairs,

The council of the 12th legislature was composed of 12 members, accord-
ing to an act of congress of 1875, which ordered at the same time the redoe-
tiun of the assembly to 24 members, and & new apportionment nmnrrlin‘i‘t.a
gopull.tmn. The members were Joseph K. Toole, president, E. D. Aikin,

ceeph A Browne, Edward Cardwell, R. 8. Ford, W. O. P. Hays, J. B

Hubbell, William B. Huandley, J. C. Kerley, Armistead H. Mitchell, “'_il!.in.ni
W. Morris, Frank L. Worden; clerks, Harry B, Comley, Haden E. Riddle;
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thirteenth legislature, in January 1883, the county
indebtedness had reached the sum of $658,974.32,
and this, while the assessed valuation of the territory
reached the sum of £33,211,319.12.¥* The revenue
for territorial purposes amounted to $90,863.47, and
the treasury afp ontana had a surplus of over $14,-
000 in its coffers.

Here, at last, the territorial craft found clear sail-
ing. With regard to the public institutions n
to the peace, the penitentiary contained sixty-seven
convicts, whose maintenance cost seventy-five cents a
day, ten of whom earned fifty cents daig( at contract
labor. During the {ear 1884 the central portion of
the penitentiary building was in process of erection.
Fifty-six insane persons were provided for and treated
at the public expense, by the contract system. The
school system ufPe Montana had reached a condition of
much excellence, the schools being graded, and none
but competent teachers employ The population
had increased to 40,000, and there was a renewed
movement toward a state constitution. Just at this

riod, after more than twelve years of wise admin-
1stration, Governor Potts was removed, and John
Schuyler Crosby appointed to succeed him, who as-
sumed office on the 15th of January, 1883, four days
after the meeting of the legislative assembly.® Cmsgy

gergeant-at-arms, T. B. Harper; J. T. Mason chaplain, The house of re
resentatives was DEP?uhn J. Donnelly, speaker, Elizur Beach, .Iohi
M. Bell, Henry N. Blake, Henry Chambers, Israel Clem, A. L. Corbly,
William E. Cullen, W. D). Davis, Stephen De Waolfe, Amos Eastman, James
H. Garlock, Michael Hanley, Curtis L. Harrington, Christian B, Houser,
Robert (. Humber, Henry A. Kennerly, Hwh“’ James K. Pardee,
Jacok M. Powers, J. C. Rogers, Oscar A, . John Stediman, Enoch
Wilson; elerks, Jamea E. Kanouse, Jamea N. Kemper; sergeant-at-arma, D.
H. Linenbarger; chaplain, W. Scott Stites. Mont, Jour. Council, 12th sesa., 3.

% The governor's m shows that the county of Lewis and Clarke paid
by its commissioners $3,664.40 for about 4 months’ work in assessing the
erty holders at the rate of 3 per cent per annum, The sheriff received 31.
per day each for the board of prisoners; more than boarding-house keepers
required of their patrons for first-class fare; and other abuses are mentioned.
Yet the people go on to-day electing legislatures from the same party which
for twenty years has persisted in these spoliations.

¥ The council of the 13th legislature was com of the followin
members: Granville Stuart, ident, Henry 3. , W. E. Baas, Edwa
Cardwell, William A. Chessman, Charles G. Cox, Warren C. Gillette, Armis-
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CHAPTER VI.

MINING AND CATTLE-RAISING.
15641885,

Imvrvx or ProsrecTomRs—UoNTINUED MINERAL DISCOVERIES—ALDER AWD
Last CHaNCE GUuLcHES—MINING ADVENTURES—SOME NotarLE Discov-
ERIES—HypRAULIO MACHINERY — QUARTZ-MINING— T RANSPORTATION—
Rootes axp FrEloETs—THE Bramvess oF CATTLE-GROWING—RAixcEs—
Branps—Rovsp-vr—Propoer aND Prosrr—Foeraer Mmvixe DeEVEL-
OPMENTS—ONDITION OF AGRICULTUEE,

TrE two primary elements of Montana’s grand de-
velopment were gold and grasses. In a rough country
of apparently few resources, the discovery of Alder
gulch, resulting in $60,000,000 of precious metal,
which that ten miles of auriferous ground produced
in twenty years,! was like the rubbing of an Aladdin
lamp. Itdrew eager prospectors from Colorado, Utah,
and Idaho, who overran the country on both sides of
the upper Missouri, and east and west of the Rocky
Mountains, many of whom realized, to a greater or
less extent, their dreams of wealth.? The most im-

1 Strahorn's Montana, 8; Barrows' Twelve Nights, 239,

% Among the discoveries of 1564 was the Silver Bow, or Summit Mountain
district, on the head waters of Deer Lodge River. It was found in July Ly
Bud. Barker, Frank Ruff, Joseph Eater, and James Ester. The name of
Silver Bow waa given by these discoversrs, from the shining and beantiful
l};iblpmmnw of the creek, which here sweeps in a crescent among the bills.
The district was 12 miles in length, and besdes the discovery claim or guilch,
there were 21 discovercd and worked in the following § years, and about as
many more that were worked after the introduction uigtrn.tur ditehes in 1568,
The men who uncovered the riches of Silver Bow district were, after the
original diseoverara, W. R. G:Eﬁaweﬂ, Peter Slater, Vernon & Co., C. Solo-
man, M, Johnson, Dennis Diri , 4. Baker, Robert McMinn, Thomas Flood,
W. K. Crawford, 8herman & Co., Henry Rust, M. Prettyman, Loster Popple,
W. E. Harris, J. La Clair, L. Thayer, Popple, A. M, Bmith, C. 8,
Warren, Jumes Beattie, George McCausland, Wolf & Cowan, From the
gulches opened by these men was taken, betneen 1564 and l!}rli!!’.] FI.SN,EM,
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portant discovery after Alder gulch was made by
John Cowan, a tall, dark-eyed, gray-haired man from
Ackworth, Georgia, who had explored for a long time
in vain, and staked his remaining hopes and efforts on
a prospect about half-way between Mullan’s pass of
the Rocky Mountains and the Missouri River, in the
valley of the Little Prickly Pear River, and called his
stake the Last Chance gulch.® From near the ground
where Helena was located, in the autumn of 1864,
John Cowan took the first few thousands of the
$16,000,000 which it has yielded, and returned to his
native state, where he built himself a saw-mill and
was wisely content.* Hundreds of miners swarmed to
Last Chance, and by the first of October the town of
Helena was founded and named, and a committee
appointed by citizens to lay it off in lots and draw
up a set of municipal regulations suited to the condi-
tions of a mining community.® From its favorable

Of the gulches, which l? too high to be worked before the completion of
the Pioneer amd Rocker ditch inlfﬂ'm, the discoverers were: W. E. Vernon,
John W. Baker, Nelson Everest, Charles 8. Warren, Michael Moran, John
Hanifin, Benjamin Vener, Eugene Boiteanx, William , Thomas Smith,
H. H. Alstreadt, Barl Gower, Jobn Barrick, Levi Russell, John Sheppard,
L. W. Burnett, John M. Kiﬂg?. ‘Arkansaw,’ H. H. Porter, L. Griswold,
Charles Rures, S8idney Dinnon, Vernon & Co., Thomas Burden, H. J. Matti-
son, Charles Noyes, Gower & Co., Crane & Lynch. Total number of claima
in the district in 1869 waa 1,007. Thers were at this time 7 ditches in tha
district from 1 to 20 miles in length, aggregating 53 miles, with & total ca-
yciry of 3,100 inches of water, constructed at o coat of §106,000. Deer Lodye
ew Northwest, Nov, 12, 1869,

'R, Btanley of Attleborough, Nuneaton, England, was one of the dia-
covery party, John Crab and I J. Miller were of the party. They had
come from Alder guleh, where no claims were left for them. They mu:fﬁ
in a gulch where Helena waa later Ehc:ad. but not finding the prospect rich,
set oot to go to Kootenai. On Hellgate River tlmgumet a party returnin
thence, who warned them not to waate their time. they turned back, an
prospected on Blackfoot River, and east of the mountaine on the Dearborn
end gﬁ.ﬂn rivers, until they found themselves once more in the gulch on the
Prickly Pear, which they eaid was ‘ their last chance,” It proved on further
Iitri.l.l tof;_;l.l the chance they desired. Btanley, in Helena City Directory,

iJohn Slosa, killed by Indians in 183668, on the Dry fork of Cheyenne
Hiver, is also called ooe o{ the discoverers of Last Ghngn guleh.

8 George P. Wood, says the Helena Republican, Sept. 20, 1866, was the
ouly one of the committes who ever attempted to discharge the duties of bis
office—an onpaid and thankless service. If Helena shows defecta of grade
and narrowness of streets in the original plan, it could not be otherwise in a
town ily settled, without surveys, and necessarily conforming to the
character of the ground. And, ss has frequently been the case, s spring of

Hasr, Wasu.—ib
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situation with regard to routes of travel, and other
advautages, Helena became a rival of the metropolis
of Alder guleh—Virginia City.

Following rapidly upon the discovery of Last
Chance gulch were others of great richness, as the
Ophir and McClellan,® thirty miles from Helena,” on
the west side of the Rocky Mountains, the Confed-
erate, east of the Missouri River and south-east of
Helena, and others.®

water determined the guestion of the first settlement. After the Helens
Water Company had constructed a system of wu.barvjlipm leading to the more
level ground, which it did in 1863-6, the town rapidly followed in that dirce-
tion. A ditch leading from Ten Mile Creek to the mines below town caused
& spreading-out in that direction. Henee the irregularities in the plan of
Montana's capital.

® Named after John L. MeClellan, the discoverer. Blackfoot City was
located on Ophir guleh, discovered by Bratton, Pemberton, and others, in May
1885. In 1872 it had been abandoned to the Chinesae,

! Helena was located on Dry guleh, which could not be worked until
ditches were constructed. Oro Fino and Grizzly gulches were joined half a
mile above the town, forming the celebrated Last Chance. Nelson's gulch
beaded in the mountains, ran into Ten Mile Creek. South from these
were & number of rich gulches running into Prickly Pear River. Helena
Republican, Sept. 15, 1860.

! For 130 miles north and south of Helena, and 100 east and west of the
same Eoint, mines of excceding richness were discovered in M85 and 1866,
First Chance gulch, a tributary of Bear gulch, in Deer e county, yielded
nearly §1,000 a day with one sluice and one set of hands, ew York golch
and Montana bar, in Meagher county, were fabulously productive. Old
Helena resideuts still love to relate that on the morning of the 18th of Au.
gust, 15666, two wagons loaded with a half-ton each of gold, and guarded by
an escort of fifteen men, deposited their freight at Hershfeld & Co.'s bank,
on Bridge street, this treasure having been taken from Montana bar and
Confederate guleh in leas than four months, 'hy two men and their assistants,
And Helena bankers are still pleased to mention that in the antumn of 1568
a four-muole team drew two and o half tons of gold fromn Helena to Benton,
for transportation down the Missouri River, most of which came from these
celebrated mines in one season, and the value of which freight was &1, 500,000,
The train was escorted by F. X. Beidler and aids. The treasnre belonged
to John Shineman, A, Campbell, C. J. Friedrichs, and T. Judaon. [ffeleno
Republican, Sept. 1. 1866; W. A. Clarke, in Strakorn’s Montana, 9.

As n memento of early days in Montana, I will cite here some of the
nuggets which rewarded the miner's toil in the placer-mining perind. 1n
Brown gulch, 5 miles from Virginia City, the gold was coarse, and nuggeta
of 10 oz or more were common. Virginia and Helena Post, Oct. 0, 1866. In
1867 & miner mamed Yager found in Fairweather gulch, on J. McEvily's
claim, n piece of gold, oblong in shape, with o shoulderat one end, and worn
smooth, weighing 15 e 2 oz. Virginie Montana Post, May 18, 1867, From

|
MeClellan'a 151. on the Blackfoot River, £30,000 was taken from one
claim in 11 days, by 5 men. From a claim, No. 8, below Discovery claim,
on the same gulch, $12,684 was token out in 5 days. The dirt k of
Elack{oot City paid from 20 c. to §140 to the pan. Hefena Republican, Aug.
26, 1568. From Nelson's guleh, at Helena, were taken an tworth $2,093,
found on Maxwell, Rollins, & Co.'s claim, and cue worth 1,630 from J. H.
Rogers’ claim, From Deitrick & Brother's elaim, on Hocker gulch, one worth
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It will be seen that with so large a stream of gold
pouring out of the country, with a diminishing popu-

$1,800; and on Tandy's claim three worth §375, 8475, and 8550, respectively,
Almost every claim had its famous nugget. Mining ground was claimed as
soon a8 discoversd, and prospectors pushed out in every divection. New
placers were found from the Bitterroot to the Bighorn River, but none to ex-
cel or to equal those of 1863 and 1564,

The discovery of quartz-ledges was contemporaneons with the discovery
of Bannack placers in 1862, A Californis miner remarked, in 1861, that he
counted T quartz lodes in one moontain. &, F. Bulletin, Aug. 28, 1861, The
first lode worked was the Dakota, which was a large, irregularly shaped
wein carrying free gold, varying from three to eight feet in fhr;:lfuqu, tmn:lI;nﬁ
north-west and south-east, dipping to the north-east, and situated in & bal
bill near Bannack. Its owners were Arnold & Allen, who proceeded to
erect & mill out of such means as were at hand, the iron and much of the
wood being furnished by the great number of ns abandoned at this point
by the Salmon River immigranta before spoken of. Out of wagon-tires, in a
common blacksmith’s forge, wers fashioned six stamps, weighing 400 pounds
each. The power used waa water, and with this simple and economical con-
trivance more gold was extracted than with some of ten times the cost in-
troduced later,

The first steam quartz-mill was put up in Bannack in 1863, by Hunkins.
Walter C. Hopkins placed a steam-mill on No. 6 Dakota, in August 1860.
The Bullion Mining Company of Montana owned a mill in 1868, with 3 Bul-
lock crushers, and it on the New York ledge, Keyser manager. The
East Bannack {.iuldpl.nd Silver Mining Company owned a mill in 1866, placed
on the Shober 1 i ed by David Worden, The Butterfield mill, and
Kirby & Clark mill, wm in operation near Bannack in 1866; and N. E,
Wood bad placed s Bullock patent crusher on Dakota No. 12, for the New
Jersey Company.

Under the first quartz-mining law of Montana, 100 feet in length econsti-
tuted & claim. The second legislature changed this to 200 feet along the
lode, with all the dips, spurs, and angles, and 50 feet on each side of the lode
for working purposes; but 1,000 feet of ground might be taken in each di-
rection nlong the lode for the same uses. Montana Seraps, 39. The person
discovering & lode waa entitled to one claim for the discovery and one by

‘mption.

Pm;n ptember 1864 James W, Whitlatch, born in Pa, not much cultured
in book-knowledge, but with great shrewdnpess and an indomitable will, who
bad become acquainted with mining and milling ores in Nevada and Colorade,
waa looking for a quartz location, hnvi:i pmrzct-ad inseveral districts before
he came to &"‘nc kly Pear, where he tried working some silver-bearing galena
ores which proved intractable from the presence of copper and antimony.
The expenditure, in a country of high prices, reduced his exchequer to naught,
and he sought Last Chanoe guleh, thoere to encamp for the winter with eight
companions, The placers were Eying enormously, and believing that quartz
is the mother of placer gold, be began searching for the veina. In this search
be was assistod by his eight messmates, who, baving less faith, and desiring
to teat their fortunes in the placer diggings, bound him to an agreement to
ive up the pursuit if at the close of a certain day of the month he Lad not
d his bonanza. The doy was drawing to a cloae, and bis companions had
returned to camp, when \?Fvui.ﬂatch caught sight of a f ot of quartz,

which on being broken open by his pick showed free gold. It was with a
quickmﬂ pulse that he struck it into the earth and uncovered the long-
ht loda,
his was the famous Whitlatch mine. In order to work it, a company
waa formed of snccesding claimanta, called the Whitlatch Union Mining Com-
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lation, with no exports except the precious metals and
a few hides and furs, and with a recklessly extrava-

pany. In 1884-5 there was taken out & good guantity of ore worth on an
average forty dollars per ton, and in Sept. 1868 the mill of the National Min-
II:_E snd Exploring ¥ commenced crushing it, followed by several
others which were erected jn this and the fnllnwinﬁ ﬁﬁr These were the
Turnley, Hendie, Sensenderfer & Whitlateh, an icker & Price mills,
the first 2 erected in 18G6. Virginia Monfana Postf, Dec. 25, 1667. Over
32,000 tons were worked before the close of 1867, yielding $1,0001,500. The
cost of mining and milling ores in Mootana at this period was enormous, being
#7 per ton to get out the ore, and from $15 to §18 for crushing it, in gold,
when gold was worth a premium of 100 per cent. The profit was therefore
small, but soch as it was, Whitlatch, with the trne enterprise of a pioneer,
devoted to the further du\rel?jpmant of his own and neighboring mines.
owned by J. C. Ricker and M. A. Price, was claim No. 1 west of Whit.-
latch discovery claim. Whitlatch and Sensenderfer was claim No. 3 east and
clairi No. 3 weat on the lode, from discovery, a half-interest in which waa
sold to Sensenderfer in June 1869, and & 30-stamp mill erected thereon. The
rmpu't was resold to a Philadelphia company under the name of The Co-
umbia Mining Company of Montana, managed by B. H. Tatem. Claim No.
4 east wos owned equally by this company and by E Mansfield & Co. Claim
No. 2 east was owned by Mansfield and E. Hodson. The westward extension
on the Union lode was called the Parkineon, and waas owned by J. W. Whit-
latch, J. Parkinson, W. Parkinson, and C. McClure, OUn m“ﬂtensinn, tha
Essex Mining Company, composed of Thomas Parkinson, W. Parkinson,
Thomas Argnjﬁa, IMP.'L'I': MecClure, owned 1,800 feet. They received a patent
for the ground from the U. 3., the first granted in Montana onder a law of
eongress concerning quartz claims, The mill site included 10 acres on Grizely
gulch, } mile from the mine. More fortunate than many other men of his
¢lasa, he secured a fortune for his own nses.

The discovery of the Whitlatch lode led to & quartz excitement, not only
about lHelena, but in every other part of Montans. TheCliff wasa promising
lode at Helepa, discovered by Worden and Hall, on which 18 claims wers
located, 8 of which were consolidated in one company known as the Cresos
Mining Company, The crevice of the Cliff was from 20 to 200 feet wide, and
it rose in many places 30 feet above the surface. It formed a dividing line
between the slate and ite formations. It crossed the gulches in thae
vicinity of Helena, all of which paid well below it, and none paid above it,
from which it would appear that it must bave been the source of their riches.
Thoe Owyhes Park mincs also were famous in 1866. Professor Hodge was
agent of the National Mining and Exploring Company of New York, which
owned them, Turnley's mill commenced running on the ores in the latter

rt of August 1868, flelena Republican, Sept. l,%Sﬁﬂ. Hodge and his san

ussell were indicted in January 1867 for killing George Moore becauss he
took timber from the company's land. VFirginia Montana Post, Feb, 2
and March 9, 1867, The Buollion Mining Company, of Nilson's gulch, com.
menced crushing their ores in Nuﬂmberslm The Sultans, at the head of
Grizzly gulch, had a tep-stamp mill erected hﬁ. Gormoley & Co. at work in
November also. It was erected by Eichard Fisher. His partner, Cliford,
was superintendent for & New York company which owned § millsin Georgia
befors the rebellion. The fm'pert;r being confiscated, Cliford migrated to
Colerado, and mined there for & years before coming to Montans. Amo:g
other mines islly opened in 1865 near Helens was the Uncle S8am, own
by a miner from Scotland named Brown, who had formerly worked on the
Gould and Curry lode of Nevada. This mine wans said at the period of its
discovery to be the richest in the known world, being o well-defined ledge
five feot wide, three fourths of which was pure gold, and the remainder prin-
cipally bismoth, The quarts casing contalning the vein, it was stated, would
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gant system of government, Montana must be brought
to comparative poverty, or at all events, was no better

assay from $500 to $2,000., Making every allowance for over-enthusiasm, the
Uncle Sam was undoubtedly & mine of very unusual richoess, with one of
those bonanzas at the top which have not been altogether unknown in other
mines.

While guartz-mining waa being followed with so much earnestness in the
regions of Bannack and Helena, it was being prosecuted also in the neighhor.
hood of Virginia City. In Summit distriet, five miles south of the then eap-
ital of Montana, four mills were running on ores from the mines in that
vicinity. In Hot Springs distriet, 30 miles north of Virginia City, were three
others, Idaho mill waa the first in Madison county, and Legan pounding ore
with 12 atampa in Dee. 1865. It was not successful, beingareph-uet] liy another
little more than & year later. Firginia Montana Post, Dec. 30, 1865, The follow-
ing year Seneca Falla mill, in a large frame structure with excellent machin-
ery, Scranton mill with a crusher, in a stone building, and Excelsior
mill with 20 stamps, in o fine, large building, were added. Ina guleh just
below Summit wea the Foster mill with 24 stamps, crushing ore from the
Mesler lode. A 50-stamp mill was on its way from the east, in May, intended
for Mill Creek mioes in the eame county. The owners were James A.
Dowdall, Manlius Branham, and C. C. Branham. The first run was made on
the Lady Suffolk lede. Two mills arrived in Bummit in Oct,, for Frank
Chistnot, from Nebraska City, overland, The best known lodes of Summit
district were the Yankee Blade, Lucas, assaying §2,000,000 per ton, Caverone
from 15 to 40 feet in width, Oro Cache, and Keystone,

There was one belonging to Haglan, Cope, and Nopton, s custom mill, and
one to the Clark and Upson Mining Company, and of which Professor Eaton was
the agent. flelena Republiean, Scpt. 13, 1866. The mines in the Hot Springs
district which were worked at this pericd were the Cotopaxi, Gold Hill, Esop,
Oro Fino, Sebastopol, Buena Vista, Poco Tiem Alpha, Cleopatra, Mark
Antony, May Reid, Megatheriom, Brooklyn, and Fony. The latter was the
leading mine. Virginia Montana Post, Feb. 24, 1868, Several vther mills and
mines appear in 1867, owped by H. A. Ward, McAndrews, Warre & Uo,,
Isancs, and L. W, Borton. At Pipestone, a fow miles north of Hot Springs,
a mill was erected in 1568, At Fish Creek, s short distance south of Pipe-
stone, the Hed Mountain distriet was opened too late in the season for the
introduction of mills,

North-east of and within about fifteen miles of Helena, on the east side nf
the Missouri, waa the Tront Creek district, in which both mills and arastras
were busily at work 'ndinﬁ_am] pounding out gold from rock of great rich-
ness, at & place called New York, on a creek flowing into the Missouri, with
a Brooklyn on the opposite side, the two towns having a population of about
400, John A. Gaston, one of the firet comers, and an Englishman, was asso-
ciated with Simpson in a 30-stamp quartz-mill. Each stamp weighed G00
pounds, and dropped 35 times & minute, pounding 22 tous in 24 hours. It
started up Ang. 28, 1866. A water-power mill, with an 11-foot overshot wheel,
was located weat of the steam-mill, and carried six 500-pound stamps, crush-
ing & ton & day each. This waa the pioneer mill of Trout Creek district, and
be%;;ﬁed to Wessel & Wilkes, and started Aug. 2ith, 1t had an arastra at-
tached. Another water-inill was erected by Cullen, and a 20-stamp steam-
mill by Hendrie & Cass, during the summer. An arastra belonging to
Rumlay & Watroos consisted of a cireular basin 12 feet in diameter, with
5 mullers, weighing in the aggregate 3,000 pounds. It reduced 1,000 ponnds
of ore in 6 hours, with one hand, and was run by water-power from an over-
shot wheel, 8 feet in diamoeter.

The Star of the West waa the first ledge developed in this district. Seven
tons yielded $357.00 in Wessell & Wilkes' arastra, at a total expense of
$97.00. The Noopareil, Grizzly, Alta, Excelsior No. 2, Little Giant, Zobra,
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off than other new countries which were without gold
mines. This, indeed, was her condition for a number

Chief of Montana, Hidbard, Trout, Keystone, Humboldt, Sampson, and 0ld
Dad were more or leas worked in 1566,

The mines, both placer and quartz, were discovered in J , by four
bunters retorning from an exploring e ition to Sun Hiver. ess men
were Moore, Price, Ritter, and Bpivy. The valley of Trout Creek was 2} by
14 miles in extent. The stream furnished the famoos New York and other

Iches, and numerous bara. A rumor of rich discoveries at the month of

un River, in the winter of 1885-8, drew & rush of prospectors in that direc-
tion in the months of Jan and February. Many were frozen to death, or
had their hands and feet frozen. Five ies were found in thogfri.ng.
Most of the explorers returned disappointed. fdake World, Feb. 24 and
March 17, 1868, A large number of immigrants by the northern route (Fisk's
train) stopped there in the summer, but abandoned thmm in October.
Virginia and Helena Post, Oct. 11, 1866. They also exp the Bear Paw
Mountains, Helena Republican, Aug. 21, 1866.

In June 1866 both quartz and placer mines were discovered on Crow
Creck, on the west side of the Missouri, nearly due west of the south end of
the Belt Range of mountains, which has fuornished so t & number of good
mines on the cast side. At this place the town of burg was laid off in
Oetober, one mile from the road ing from Helena to Gallatin. The first
lode found was the Blipf, by J. A. Gau‘)ar and George Beard. The Johnny
Keating, by Keating and Blacher, Ironclad, Leviathan, Twilight, Nighthawk,
Ubio, Ultramarine, Robert E. Lee, and 20 others were lou.bo&gdnri.n.g the sum-
mer. Virginia Montana Post, May 2, 1868, The district, a rich one, and Raders-
burg had, in 1868, 600 inhabitants. In the Silver Bow and Blackicot regions
quartz was being daily discovered. In December 1865 there had been dis-
coverad the Lioness, Hocker, Shamrock, Original, Alhambra, Wild FPat,
Mountaineer, Polar Star, Lepley, Dewey, Arctic, Fairmount, and a host of
others. Quartz was discovered near McClellan gulch by Henry Proaser and
Charles Melvin, 1,000 feet of which sold for $10,000. is was the Glencos
mine, [lelena Republican, Aug. 18, 1868. Buot there appear to have been no
mills introduced west of the Hocky Mountains until later,

The first arrival of hydraulic machinery in Montana was in November
1865, when the Nelson Hydraulie Mining Company imported four engines of
ten-horse power, throwing water eighty feet hiih' with iron piping and india-
rubber bose extensions. ther powerful hydraulic machine was imported
by N. G. McComb in September 1566, and put up on Zoller's bar, near Ban-
nack, The construction of bed-rock flumes and extensive ditches waa only
jost begun. There were 500 or more gulches in Montans which produced
well, and about twenty that were remarkably rich. Bome were socon ex-
hausted, but & good number paid well for the introduction of improved meana
of mining. As early aa 1867 there were over thirty-two miles of ditching at
Fronch bar, near Cafion ferry, east of Helens, and ninety-six flumes, the cost
of which was §75,000, and was at that period the largest improvement of the
kind in Montans. The Bowlder ditch, owned by McGregor, Metcalf, &
Speigle of Californis, which supplied the mines around Diamond City, was
five miles long, and cost $60, The excessive cost of the work was ccca-
sioned by having touse 1,718 feet of pipe in crossing Confederate gulch. 8. F,
Alta, March 23, 1868. The El Dorado bar ditch, north of French bar, was
4} miles long, and cost §50,000; and many smaller ditches had been con-
structed east of the Missouri, whose aggregate cost waa about a quarter of
a million. The Ten-Mile diteh at Helena was completed in June 1867. It waa
built by Henry 